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ACTION ITEMS

MS. ABBOTT???:  Help organize CAG members to get a letter about worker safety (example of work crew up to their shoulders in tree removal on Mead Street who had no clue of any possible contamination.) (p.36)

MR. DURAN:  Followup on signs that have been defaced (with paint.)  Also on need that signs be also placed in Spanish. (p.36)

MR. ESPOSITO: 1) Ask DTSC for modern physical technical determination of toxins down to the level of current technology, for modern analytic methods. (p.20)  2) Ask DTSC for proof that remediation activities protect human health.  Where is the data? (p.21)  3) Ask DTSC what analytic method will be used to detect purified uranium metal in soil and in water as distinct from NORM?    (p.29) 

MS. GRAVES: 1) Determine from various CAG members what changes, if any, should be made to the distribution method of the meeting minutes. (p.7)  2) Ensure wireless microphones for future CAG meetings at City Council Chambers are available. 3) Follow up with Councilmember Marquez regarding all previous excavation efforts to look for (barrels containing) radioactive waste.(p.24) 
MR. KIM: Determine if DTSC has ordered remediation of the hot spot in Richmond Field Station.  It is part of Zeneca, part of 46th Street, part of the Field Station.  (they did it for Zeneca.) Followup with DTSC on this (p.25) 

MR. MOSTELLER:  Let CAG know the date that the historical survey of radioactive materials on the Zeneca site will be available. (p.29)

MS. NAKASHIMA: 1) Check notification to CAG for EnviroStor. (p.26) 2) Let CAG know whether there is a need for another well at Area T in Marina Bay (p.30)  3) Let CAG know how the BioRad pilot study is going, ask BioRad to come to next CAG meeting (and do report out on their remediation activities.) (p.30)  4) Help Simms Thompson reach the DTSC project manager of the Harbor Way South remediation (so he can ask about the sampling and the effect it will have on the cap that is over the area.) (p.32)  5) Notify PG&E of the hot spot (near RFS guard booth) - they get called to check that area out every once a semester because of a foul odor smell- PG&E comes out and does digging at that hot spot. (p.33) 6)  DTSC needs to put all CAG letters, correspondence, and other products the CAG produced on the EnviroStor, where anybody in the public can access it. (p.34)

MS. PADGETT: 1) Ranking of toxics (p.10)  2) Ask DTSC “where is Bayer Crop Science” in historical survey of radioactive materials?  We have three responsible parties, Cherokee/Simeon, Zeneca, and Bayer Crop Science.  So where are they in this activity and looking at history? (p.29)

MS. RIDGEWAY: Sticky wall for comments, etc. (p.5)
MR. ROBINSON: Administrative Technology Subcommittee discussion on laptop (for Simms.) (p.14)

PROCEEDINGS 

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  We're running about seven minutes late.  So we might as well get started.  This is my first regular meeting since I left a while ago, and I participated in the last meeting, but it is good to be back on board.  And we will get the meeting started.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So let's get started.  We'll go over the agenda and the ground rules.  So did you get copies of the agenda?  Is there anybody who needs a copy?  Do we have any left up here?  Thank you, everybody, for coming.  So to get it started tonight, we're going to go through the CAG business, talk a little bit about what happened at the last meeting.  We did have a meeting in May which was just the CAG only meeting, just to kind of talk about some process things.  We were going to have a conversation about bylaws.  Eric isn't here. 

MR. BLUM:  I wasn't going to come, but I did.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I apologize.  I am still getting everybody's names and faces.  We are going to table this until next time.  Joe is not here.  We wanted to have him participating in this discussion.  So we are going to table this one.  I promised that we would have a break in our meetings.  So I put that on the agenda.  Then we will have our updates from the Toxics Committee and public comments.

MS. PADGETT:  One of the things that isn't on the agenda that we had agreed with going forward is an opportunity for the responsible parties to give an update if they choose.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  Could we put that here?

MS. PADGETT:  That is fine with me.  We have one responsible party.  Cherokee Simeon is here.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I am going to begin my notes here, my action items and my parking lot.  Okay.  You do have an update.  Okay.  We'll put that in there if that is okay with you.  Are there any other changes that we need to look at with the agenda?  Okay.  So ground rules.  Actually, I had copies of these for everyone.  But on a regular basis we established these ground rules in April, and everyone agreed to these in April.  Last month at the CAG meeting we revised the ground rules and operating norms.  And so I did make handouts of that for the CAG.  We'll talk about it.  So I think it is mostly for them, anyway, that are participating the most.  I need my copy.  

So in general the ground rules we agreed to were equal voice, let others have the opportunity to speak, equal respect, meaning treat others with respect, no harsh or disrespectful manner, and speaking in a civil tone.  Understanding that respect means different things to different people.  Focus front, paying attention to the presenter, keeping comments related to the topics at hand, and listening to other views before making judgment.  

In our last meeting in May we asked for input from the members that were attending, and the question was what do you need to be able to be a productive member of the CAG and to be able to contribute.  So this is pretty much a summary of what is on the handout.  So when we talk about verbal dialogue, being very concise and brief in our CAG meetings so that we don't    so that we have enough time to get through all of the topics.  

If an item has been addressed and we capture it, we move on so that we can keep progress with the meeting.  Again, stay on the topic at hand and allow others the opportunity to speak, so the equal voice.  So we still have respect for others, listening.  We also had “contribute to CAG efforts”.  And this is, you know, outside of the CAG meetings, so that is what the members needed from each other to be able to be productive.  Stay on schedule in meetings.  

And I know we already started late today, so we are doing the best we can.  And the other item was an open dialogue with the responsible parties.  So we will have them talk tonight, and then we will work on establishing a way to make sure that is happening on an ongoing basis.  As always, at least we ask the members if we can agree to the bylaws.  If so, raise your hand.  

All right.  Okay.  Thank you.  I will put these up on the wall.  Question?

MR. DOTSON:  Yeah.  Back to the agenda.  Were there any other committee reports other than the Toxics Committee?

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.

MS. ABBOTT:  I don't know if Pablo is coming or not.  There was a committee meeting.  No.

MR. BLUM:  Did Joe request    

MS. RIDGWAY:  No, he did not.  It was a decision that a couple of the CAG members talked about. 

MS. PADGETT:  We can talk about it some more. 

MR. BLUM:  Just curious how that came about, curious what happened.

MS. PADGETT:  We could talk about it.  Should we?

MR. BLUM:  Do we have time right now? 

MS. PADGETT:  Maybe the bylaws amendment should be discussed tonight.  The reason we thought maybe it could be tabled is that Joe has part of the amendment.  And it is easier to explain.  And maybe there are others here who could take it on and explain it.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I would say to Eric, we had not seen this agenda that showed you as a presenter when we discussed it.  I would have second thoughts about eliminating a presentation without the presenter here.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  I am okay with it if you are. 

MR. BLUM:  Let's move on with the agenda.

MS. RIDGWAY:  The other couple of things that came through our meeting    Tarnel? 

MS. ABBOTT:  I appreciate it if people speak loudly and clearly.  I don't hear it well.  We don't have microphones.  If you look that way and talk, I am really not going to hear you.  Thanks.  Just boom it out.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  The other couple of things from a process perspective we did from the last meeting was one, we used the green sheets.  So as we go through the presentations, the comments, information that is being shared tonight, while they are sharing information, if you can capture comments here on these.  I can take them, you can give your comments, but then we have some of them captured also.  It will help people be a bit more concise in their feedback and staying on topic, 

And then in our meeting before we had a "sticky" wall.  We will get that for the next meeting.  But we will put this up, a flow chart somewhere, and we will capture all these.  It will make it easier as I am capturing some of the key points that come through.  These are for you to write your comments, keep track of your train of thoughts, those types of things.  There are pens here, and we can use these as we have conversation.  It is not the only way to give input.  I don't want you to think you can't say anything, but it is trying to help the process move along.  

The other thing we discussed, and I kind of made an executive decision, and I did change the color.  But we talked about some kind of a verbal indicator to help remind people to stay on target, stay on track.  So the yellow… I changed them to yellow instead of red, because it is more of a reminder to people as they are talking.  

If they are moving off topic, signal me, signal them.  Think about staying on topic or target.  It is something we are going to try.  We are evolving, so we will see how this works.  Again, be respectful as you use them.  Okay.  Any questions, comments about ground rules, process stuff?  Okay.  So, Carolyn, you were going to do the minutes approval.

MS. GRAVES:  Yes.  Now, some people missed one or the other of the last two meeting.  I believe most people got the March and April minutes.  And now it is June and we need to finally get them approved, I believe.  It is my understanding they have not been formally approved.

MS. ABBOTT:  That is correct.  And I am trying to remember, was February ever approved? 

MS. GRAVES:  Definitely people got copies.

MR. BLUM:  I move approval of March and April minutes. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I second. 

MS. GRAVES:  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Okay.  Minutes approved.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So that is done.  So we did February, March, and April.  So the other thing from a process perspective we did not talk about, but I think it is important, and I have talked to some people on the Executive Committee about it is beginning to capture and track action items.  And what I have done from the last, only the last two meetings, is captured the action items that came up in the meetings, whether they were in the transcribed notes or in the last meeting.  

I didn't think it was fair to lay this on you today and ask you if you had done the action items that you probably didn't realize that you were responsible for.  So what I did was there were 28 action items on here, and these action items come from things that were specifically brought up where people said, "I am going to do this and you are going to do that," and there was agreement.  

They might have been issues that were raised that needed to be resolved, they might have been questions that came up that needed to be answered, or they could have been parking lot items.  I will put the parking lot up in a minute.  Those things.  Just so you know, that's where these things came from.  Some of them, I apologize if they are looking like they are coming out of the blue.  So we were not going to go through them one by one.  

What I am asking you each to do is to please review the action item log between now and June 30th.  And if you either are the owner of one where it says you are the owner or the owner of one that has no owner or have one that you should be the owner of... 

MR. DOTSON:  Are there more copies of it? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  I would like you to, if you could, send me the status of that action item, and I will update this by… when I have all of the input so that in the next meeting… and I apologize because I don't know what the facilitator will be next time.  But whoever the facilitator is, we will hand this off to that facilitator, or it will be me and we will review what is open.  If it is closed, for now we are going to say it is closed, and we will move on.  But what we want to start being diligent about is capturing things from this meeting, because it is important when we all come together and we want to make sure that things that are being talked about in these meetings are being followed up on.  

So I think we need a good mechanism for doing that.  So this is from a process perspective.  This is what I am putting in place for you. 

MR. DOTSON:  I just received a note that we have a Nominations Committee report.  So I want to make sure that is there.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  All right.  Yes.  Tarnel? 

MS. ABBOTT:  I am a little bit    I don't know.  Maybe it is in here under "Announcements."  I don't know.  But there are some issues around the organization of how minutes are going to be distributed and so on and so forth and be discussed.  And I just don't know where that is going to go.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Let's talk about what those are.  We may not be able to talk about how to address them tonight, but we can put it as an action item and maybe get some people to talk about it.  I am just sensitive to time.  So we definitely want to bring that up as an issue and then decide how to approach it.  So before we move on to that, any questions about the action item log specifically or generally?  Is this something that you can all take a look at and get back to me on it so we can go forward?  

Okay.  Great.  Then let's talk about announcements.  So open it up for announcements now or comments.  So, Tarnel, you mentioned having a mechanism, so you talked about the minutes.  Do you want to go ahead? 

MS. ABBOTT:  I just want to know what the status is.  Are we going to have hard copies of the minutes?

MS. GRAVES:  That is me.  I am hoping to, actually, since we have given computers out to folks that didn't have them, other than I believe the only person without one still is Simms.  You refused one, but I am hoping to send them electronically and that people who want a hard copy, if they can't print it themselves then let me know and I will print them a copy.  I am hoping to get away from killing trees and printing one for everybody.  

We were going to try to eventually go to summaries of meeting. 

MS. ABBOTT:  That was some people's idea.  Not everybody wanted to do that.  

MS. GRAVES:  I don't know if we really have time to get into that debate. 

MR. DOTSON:  I recycle paper.  I would like a hard copy.

MS. RIDGWAY:  How about if we    can you own proposing a process for the handling of the minutes?  

MS. GRAVES:  Maybe I can try to work out a process where we can try to resolve it off line.

MS. RIDGWAY:  That's what I was going to say.  I am going to be capturing stuff here, and I don't know who the facilitator will be next month, but I will capture things in the summary format similar to what I did in May.  And so that will also be available to help focus people versus having a transcript, you know.  So it is not in place at this point.  So we can talk, if you want, about that.  And then you can maybe elicit from people what they want.  

MS. GRAVES:  Maybe during the break I will talk to some people and see what they think about it.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So that is okay?

MS. GRAVES:  Yeah.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Any other announcements?

MR. THOMPSON:  I would like to make an announcement.  We had a situation take place here in Richmond last night, and the Internet was down due to some thieves cutting the cable lines in order to get the copper wire.  So the Internet was down for quite a while last night.  And as far as I know some of the people might still have problems with the Internet.  So it would probably be a good idea pertaining to the minutes, just in case you do have a glitch you will have something that you could take and have in hand rather than the people having to rely on the Internet as a backup or whatever.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So we have that input into the process.  Okay.  Anything else?

MS. ABBOTT:  Well, you know, I just    I know you guys don't want to talk about it here, but I think it's really important. 

MS. GRAVES:  I am just saying, let's do it as a subcommittee type meeting.

MS. RIDGWAY:  It is very important for you to be able to get the information you need.  I think that there might be other kinds of things you might want to figure out besides is it hard copy or not.  You might want to talk about    Carolyn might want to say, "Here is when you should expect to get them and here is the format that you should get them in."  So those are the kinds of things that Carolyn can kind of make a proposal based on input from the CAG members.  Is that okay?

MS. PADGETT:  I think that is a good idea to get an ad hoc committee and get it out of this room.

MS. GRAVES:  We have the public here.

MS. RIDGWAY:  If we talk about doing committee work, one of things we talked about is doing the committee work at the committees and not at these CAG meetings, so just trying to have that balance.  Okay.  All right.  So then the update from the May CAG session, so in the May meeting, just for those of you who weren't there, what we did was we talked a little bit about the mission of CAG and its purpose.  We talked    and we talked about kind of the operating norms for the group.  Those were the two main topics that we discussed at that meeting.  So I do have copies of the Mission and vision and the goals.  They are not changed, but I thought it was important to bring them so people remember what they are.  I was going to put them out ahead of time and I forgot.  We are not going to go through the whole thing.  

So the thing that was important to bring up is there has been some discussion about what is the purpose of the CAG.  And there is some things that have come up that I guess there have been differences of opinion in terms of are they the core purpose of CAG.  I will say that there are still some things that are out there that weren't resolved.  But the one thing that the group did agree on is that in order to be able to address some of those    we call them areas of influence    the CAG must be successful in meeting its mission, vision, and goals, so that those are still the core things that the CAG must be successful at before you even think about can you do some other things that are very important but really need to have these things done.  So the purpose    let's just go ahead and have somebody read the purpose.  Can somebody volunteer to read the purpose statement?

MS. ABBOTT:  I'll read.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Thank you.

MS. ABBOTT:  Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area Community Advisory Group.  Purpose:  Statement from Mission Statement and bylaws, Version 3, December 18, 2005.  The mission of the Community Advisory Group, CAG.  Our purpose is to ensure that the interests of the entire community are included in plans for the proper and comprehensive cleanup and ongoing monitoring of polluted sites in the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area.  The CAG's job is to involve all stakeholders in a public, inclusive process leading to an appropriate cleanup of polluted sites in this area.  Note:  The exact boundary of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area remains to be determined but is roughly defined by the area bounded by Harbor Way South Interstate 580 and the border with El Cerrito.  This includes the current residential neighborhood of Marina Bay as well as the historic community of Seaport.  

Our vision:  We are working to create a future where all residents and users of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area, human and otherwise, will find a clean, safe, accessible and healthy environment for work, recreation, and living.  We want future citizens to look back at our efforts and recognize that the Community Advisory Group did a conscientious job of facilitating the best long term alternatives for the area.  We strive to represent the interests of those not yet born, predicated on the principle of doing no further harm.  

Our goals:  One, to research and assemble information about past uses to the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area and make this information readily accessible to the community.  This will include a complete list of site contaminants as complied, ranged, and classified by the DTSC, as well as a detailed history of past remediation efforts.  Two, to monitor the development of a comprehensive set of alternatives for the future remediation of polluted sites and publicize them within the community.  

Three, to ensure that the regulatory agencies responsible for monitoring cleanup activities provide adequate oversight to ensure that all work is conducted in the safest possible manner, and that the health, safety, and general welfare of the surrounding community are protected at all times.  

Four, to provide outreach and education of the community on the issues presented by the history of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area, on the remediation of polluted sites in the area, and on the public process for reaching a final agreement.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So I would say the CAG must be successful in reaching these goals and its mission.  And the three things that came up in our conversation that were not included in the Mission but that were areas of concern for people were future land use, where the material goes when it leaves, basically, during the cleanup process, so looking at the bigger community.  So we don't want to just take it from here and put it in somebody else's community, and then going after the polluters of record.  

So those are things that are not part of the Mission.  We talked about them being areas of influence, that definitely the work of the CAG is necessary for anyone or any efforts in these areas, but that the mission of the CAG still holds as it is.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Would you clarify what you mean by going after the polluters of record?  It is ambiguous.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Yes, it is.  Filing any kind of lawsuits or retribution against any polluters of records, so more from a legal aspect.  And it is not the mission of CAG to have this legal aspect as the mission is defined.  That might    the output of this might be useful for other activities that are going on, I guess is the main thing that I am there trying to convey that we talked about.  So this is necessary before any other of those things could even happen.  Go ahead. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  So this does not discuss the ongoing work of the CAG which, in part, is a discovery process to find out what is the nature of the pollution in the area.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Is that in the Mission? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Yes, but going after polluters is ambiguous.  That's why I wanted to define it.

MS. RIDGWAY:  You are not arguing that point.  You are making it clear.

DR. ESPOSITO:  No.  I am making it clear.  So there is a level of history that is involved in what the CAG is doing.  Any comments from anybody that was at the meeting or any comments on this at all? 

MS. ABBOTT:  I have some memory, maybe, Sherry, you can help me remember this, on the goals.  Number one, the list of site contaminants as compiled, ranked, and classified by the DTSC.  Were we at one point thinking that was the rankings    we could have other rankings included or am I thinking of something else? 

MS. PADGETT:  I can tell you I think later where that came from.  I am not sure we want to drill down into it right now.  I would be glad to talk about it.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Is it something that we may need to bring back to the meeting at another time?

MS. PADGETT:  Perhaps.  And the question would pertain to the ranking of containments.  It is a good question.  I have it.  I own it.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  Any other comments, thoughts?  Okay.  So let's talk about where we go from here, since we have a little bit of an agenda to move around.  So the other thing was we did get a request to move up these updates.  So I am open to how we proceed.  We can have a responsible party update, we can do bylaws, amendments.  We could jump into Toxics Committee.  Is there a special order we should go in, Sherry? 

MS. PADGETT:  I propose the responsible party, Toxics Committee, and then DTSC update and then our committee work.  That is a motion. 

MS. GRAVES:  I'll second it.  

MR. MUNOZ:  There is also a Nominations Committee report.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So agenda.  Okay.  So the proposal was responsible party.  What was next?  Toxics Committee, DTSC, committee work, public comments.  Is that part of this? 

MS. PADGETT:  What about the bylaws?

MR. BLUM:  It will come under the committee reports.

MR. MUNOZ:  Can we involve the public after the DTSC so they can also participate? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  And a break maybe about here. 

MR. DOTSON:  How much time for the break? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  How much time does responsible party have? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  Probably five minutes, five, ten, tops. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  We had 25 total.  Okay.  And we have the same for DTSC, was about 25 minutes.  We'll write all these down and see if it adds up.  I will be realistic.  And then we need about    how much time do you need for bylaws? 

MR. BLUM:  Four minutes.

MS. RIDGWAY:  No way, maybe five.  So let's do at least ten minutes here and then ten and then wrap for ten.  So I think that gives us enough time.  We'll kind of push things around.  So next, then, on the agenda is responsible party.

MR. MOSTELLER:  Where should I stand?  There used to be a podium.  So I am Doug Mosteller with Cherokee Investment Partners.  I am the engineering project manager for Cherokee.  And first of all, I appreciate the opportunity to speak and having a spot on the agenda.  So I just want to give you an update as to really where we are within our process as a responsible party.  And right off the bat I want to    the update I want to give is on the CAG technical consultant meeting that we had last Friday.  That was with your consultants, Treadwell and Rollo and Iris.  

I thought it was a really productive meeting.  For two hours we went through a lot of information.  Hopefully it was a first step in several steps of an open dialogue we can have on a technical basis such that they can be more productive to the CAG as a technical consultant.  So I appreciate the efforts in getting that meeting set up.  Thank you.  

We have a number of activities going on.  I am going to go through them in a list.  First off we have the Lot One, Two, remedial investigation report.  Lots One and Two, I am sure everybody is familiar, this is considered Lot One.  This is considered Lot Two.  Remedial Investigation report, that is where we went out and collected a number of soil, soil gas, and groundwater samples.  We consolidate all of that information into a report, and that is, generally speaking, your remedial investigation report.  

We have submitted a first draft of that to DTSC.  We have received some comments from DTSC which did also include some comments from the CAG.  We are addressing those DTSC comments and hope to have the revised draft of the Lot One, Two RI at the end of June, probably early July.  One thing that I am not quite certain about, actually, and perhaps we need to talk about this.  I don't know whether or not the CAG's technical consultants will be submitting additional comments on Lot Two or One.  That is one thing I would like to discuss further.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I would like to, as you are going through, capture some things as you go on.  One of things you said was you are going to have a report generated? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  We will have a revised report generated, and one of the    as we are addressing DTSC comments right now.   

MS. RIDGWAY:  So advisory report generated. 

MR. MOSTELLER:  For Lot One, Two, RI, (Remedial Investigation) June, July.  I think it depends a little bit about comments that we might receive and the extent of those comments.

MS. RIDGWAY:  And then the technical consultants will be providing input to this? 

MS. PADGETT:  Prior to its generation.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.

MS. PADGETT:  On or around June 7th or so.

MR. MOSTELLER:  That's when the comments are going to be ready? 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.

MR. MOSTELLER:  Next is the Lot Three Remedial Investigation report.  And that is    Lot Three is generally considered this area here in the uplands portion.  We are waiting for DTSC comments in a similar fashion.  I am assuming that the technical consultants would be providing comments on that.  So we will wait for those comments as well.

MS. RIDGWAY:  When do you need those?

MR. MOSTELLER:  Is that also going to be the 27th? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  From DTSC also? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  From the CAG's technical consultants.  Once we receive the comments we will be revising the document within 30 days with members of the Board, but 30 days after that.  Then the next thing that we are currently working on is the human health risk assessment.  That is work that we are closely working with DTSC on that, and really what the risk assessment does in a nutshell is it takes all that wealth of information that we have and it takes a look at what does it mean in terms of risk to human health under a variety of scenarios, both cancerous and of cancerous risk.  So it is a fairly involved and lengthy document that includes a number of calculations.  But, in a nutshell, it takes a look at, okay, we collected the samples, we did the analysis, we have results.  What do they mean in terms of the risk of human health?  

Next is the lagoon investigation.  That would be for this lagoon here, which is referred to as the lower lagoon.  We have received DTSC approval for our work plans.  That means we said, "This is what we are going to go sample for."  DTSC gave us some comments.  Ultimately we gave them a document that they approved.  We are now looking to schedule that work.  The work was anticipated for late June.  I just found out today they tried to float a boat.  We are actually going to take a boat and try to collect samples.  There is not enough water in there.  We are going to have to look for a different kind of boat.  The sampling effort may be delayed.  It may be in July, depending on the development of the fan boat type of thing.  That's what we are looking into.  You have to do what you have to do to get the samples, really.  

The next thing is the PCB, polychlorinated biphenyls.  It is a big work, and VOC, volatile organic compound removal action work plan.  That is scheduled for this localized area on Lot One.  We have a work plan.  This document is known as a remedial action work plan.  It was submitted to DTSC.  We have revised it.  We are getting that document ready for public comment.  We expect that public comment would begin in July, so next month.  So one of the things, actually, that perhaps we can talk about is maybe next time instead of me talking we could have somebody here describing what is in that work plan because it would be right around the start of that public comment period.

MS. RIDGWAY:  What kind of a work plan is it?

MR. MOSTELLER:  We'll call it the PCB/VOC removal.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Who needs to do that?  Who needs to get that update? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  Either I can do it or one of our consultants could do it, depending on their availability. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  From the technical consultants? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  One of the responsible parties.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  You will figure out who it is.

MR. MOSTELLER:  If that is something that the CAG would like to hear at the next meeting, then I can check on availability if that is something that the CAG wishes to learn more about.  The idea would be they would describe, really, the work and the rationalization for the work. 

MS. PADGETT:  That is one for Michael to own as the head of the Toxics Committee to decide whether it is something that we are going to have on the next meeting agenda.

MR. MOSTELLER:  The way we were thinking about it was if we were initiating the public comment period on this document, which is going to be probably about that thick as a presentation, and to try to boil it down it might be helpful.  So keep that in mind.  And the last thing I just wanted to really solicit information about is we provided some computers and some Internet access and just wanted to know if that was working out and if anything more needed to happen.  And if so, let me know.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Are you waiting for responses?

MR. DOTSON:  Ethel is not here.  She is not feeling well.  But she has got a computer and it is on line.

MR. MOSTELLER:  That is great.  I talked to her a couple of times about that, and I'm glad she was able to work that out.

MS. PADGETT:  We haven't seen JoAnn since April, so she's had her computer since April.  And we still have a desktop available for Simms if he is interested. 

MR. DOTSON:  JoAnn called me, and she has been ill for the last    I expected to see her here.  I am not sure exactly.

MR. MUNOZ:  I spoke with her last week.  She won't be here today.

MR. THOMPSON:  I would like to make a comment pertaining to the computers.  Besides being on the CAG here, I am involved in a lot of other activities within the City government.  And I would appreciate a laptop, wireless, rather than having one that is stationary.

MR. MOSTELLER:  I believe the agreement did not specify a certain number of laptops.  And we said we would make available laptops or desk tops, whichever we have available.  And I believe    I think there is an available desktop that is not even being used right now.

MS. PADGETT:  Brand new in the box.

MR. THOMPSON:  What I would like    

MS. RIDGWAY:  Is there an action that needs to come from this?

DR. CLARK:  You are talking about a desktop.  He asked about a laptop.  And I really didn't hear any definitive answer as to why you are giving out computers, why his request for a laptop is not of consideration.

MR. MOSTELLER:  I guess it would be that we have an available computer right now that is a desktop, and it is difficult, frankly, for me to rationalize    we have one available that is ready to go.  So it is   

MR. DOTSON:  As I recall, there was supposed to be a discussion with the individuals that requested a computer to determine what their needs were.  And, like, I know JoAnn said she did not want a laptop.  And Ethel requested one, and I am not sure if Sims requested one at the time.  But I guess the essence of it, if it is possible    I don't know if it is possible    but it is a specific request.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think this is an administrative Technology Subcommittee discussion.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I am going to put it as an action item for follow up.

DR. ESPOSITO:  That would be Joe Robinson, the chair. 

MR. BLUM:  On the report?  Who prepares the human health risk assessments?

MR. MOSTELLER:  The consultant's name is EKI.  We brought them into the project, I would say in the middle of '05.  That is really their sweet spot.  They are highly qualified.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Doug, I just wanted to be certain that you received all of the critiques that the Toxics Committee prepared in the past. 

MR. MOSTELLER:  I did receive them.  In fact, I meant to write an email back acknowledging that I received them, and one of questions that I would like to work through is how are they going to be integrated with the CAG's technical consultants and    I will get to that when I give my report.  Okay.  I am just a little unclear to how it is all going.

MR. DOTSON:  Dr. Brunner, you had some comments. 

DR. BRUNNER:  I was going to ask about the human risk assessment consultant.  Is the procedure reviewed by DTSC? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  Yes, yes.  And that is something, again, that in future CAG meetings we can have them come in and provide an overview of the process and then get into details.  I mean, it is really    the more I think we can have an open dialogue and understand what you want to hear, I think we can provide that, so if that is of interest.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Can you give me the technical information? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  Sure.  Right now?  

MS. RIDGWAY:  The other action I was going to write down was to follow up with you on what they want to hear.  Okay. 

MR. BLUM:  I think that would be fabulous if you could tell us about that.

MR. MOSTELLER:  It is an involved process.  There are a lot of things that go into it.  

MR. BLUM:  It is not going to be in the next 30 days.

MR. MOSTELLER:  Perhaps August or something.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Yes.

MR. THOMPSON:  What safety factor are you going to use to make sure that any vulnerable gases that are going to come off of these samples that you are taking out of this marsh area is not going to be effective on the community that is downwind from there?

MR. MOSTELLER:  I am not sure that I    in the lagoon sample? 

MR. THOMPSON:  Yes.

MR. MOSTELLER:  We have a health and safety protocol that has been reviewed and approved by DTSC.  They are monitoring for volatiles, if you will, as part of the sampling protocol.

MR. THOMPSON:  You are going to be taking and drilling or using something to disturb that soil, right?

MR. MOSTELLER:  Right. 

MR. THOMPSON:  So the gases that come off of that.

MR. MOSTELLER:  I guess in addition to the health and safety protocol that would be followed, and documented, there    there is really    we are talking parts per trillion at most, which would be    if you think about a part per million, I think is like a drop of water in an Olympic sized swimming pool or a blade of grass in a football field.  Think about a blade of grass in a thousand football fields.  That would be the hypothetical amount of gas in there.  It would be really quite insignificant.

MS. RIDGWAY:  We are going to move on to the next topic.  If you have more questions for Doug, one of the things we can do is if you can write them on the paper, then we can give those to    you know, we can compile those and he can have an opportunity to answer those off line and get back to us or, you know, that is one way.  Do you have one?

MS. PADGETT:  I have one, but I will be bringing it up in the Toxics Committee.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Does anybody have any other questions that they want to write down?  Just give them to me when you are ready.  Okay.  Next is the Toxics Committee.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I thought that was after the break.

MS. RIDGWAY:  We can have the break first if you want.  Are you guys ready for a break? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I am perfectly happy to go ahead.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.

DR. ESPOSITO:  This is a map of the UC Berkeley Richmond Field Station.  And I put it up here because I am going to refer to it at the end of my summary.  And at that time I will point out a few things and bring it a little forward so the CAG members can see it.  What I would like to do is to talk to you about some of the most recent activities of the Toxics Committee.  And I think everyone in the audience should have a copy of this report.  So I will read it, but I will not read it with the formality that it is written.  

What I would first like to talk about is that the Technical Support Subcommittee of the Toxics Committee met with our technical consultants Dorinda Shipman of Treadwell and Rollo, and Adrian LaPierre of Iris Environmental to get their evaluations of the remedial investigation and current condition reports of Lots One, Two, and Three of the Zeneca site and all the critiques that the Toxics Committee has produced during the last several years regarding these reports of current conditions.  Our consultants support the concerns that we have expressed in the past, which actually precedes my advent onto this committee.  with respect to the environmental remediation, public health and safety, preservation of native plants and animals, contamination of soil, water and air, by toxics metals chemicals and radioisotopes.  I think this is a very significant milestone considering the fact that if you just consider the critiques of the draft final remedial investigation reports of the Zeneca/Stauffer for Lots One, Two, and Three, there were about 90 recommendations that we made.  We have absolutely no idea how many of them got passed on to the DTSC.  We don't receive that information.  It is haphazard.  

But we are impressed that, in the main, that our consultants agreed that these were important recommendations.  There may be some differences, and that will emerge, but in the main we find that result  useful and informative.  And we understand that the Community Advisory Group is an advisory group.  Our comments are not mandatory.  We provide input.  But part of the reason we exist is to lay a foundation for community acceptance of what goes on on this real estate.  And consequently our comments we would like to have heard by the landowners and responsible parties, and we have, I think, gotten off to a very collaborative start     it will get somewhat adversarial    but nonetheless it is respectful and I think it will continue to be useful.  

As Doug mentioned, the next major activity was a subsequent meeting which took place on June 8th.  It was a kick off meeting.  The chief purpose was that CSV would describe their previous and ongoing remedial activities at the Zeneca/Stauffer Lot One, Two, and Three, and the approach they are using to complete landmark events and the reports that will finally result in site certification.  So the steps in brief are, one, prepare current condition reports, that the land owner examines the property carefully, its history, seeks conditions that might be harmful to humans or to the biota, looks for the previous history, and makes the measurements of toxins and then finds data gaps, information that needs to be filled in.  

Subsequent to that remedial investigation, it's an undertaking which involves a lot of measurements for the presence of toxics, trying to fill those data gaps, trying to examine aspects of the territory that might present hazards to other nearby areas.  For example, we have people living in villages nearby, Marina Bay village.  And that could be then followed by a site specific risk assessment, a very detailed analysis of what the risks are to humans and the biota and the surrounding environment, and a feasibility study of how to deal with this and finally a remedial action plan, a remediation and site certification.  

Now as we just heard the remedial investigation reports for Zeneca/Stauffer for Lots One, Two and Three are incomplete.  Nonetheless, the subsequent steps have been initiated to various extents.  We have a concern about this, how studies are being conducted to assess the efficacy of different protocols to reduce the concentration of some of the volatile hazards for benzene, trichlorethene, perchlorethene, 1 2 dichlorethene in soil and ground water.  

Workers are conducting these programs despite the fact that Barbara Cook of DTSC sent back all of the Uranium 238 determinations for Lots One, Two, and Three on November 30th of 2006 in a letter to Doug and the fact that there are soil hot spots for Radium 226 in this area that are five times more radioactive than the control soil from Booker T. Anderson Park, and that means they are 200 times more radioactive than the preliminary remediation for for residential use because Booker T. Anderson Park is 40 times higher for Radium 226 than is promulgated as a public health goal in remediation for residential use.  

So our concern is that, for example, at monitoring Well No. 25, which is such a hot spot that individuals are taking samples, and when you lean over the well you breathe the vapors, and the vapors that are being produced by Radium 226 are radon gas, which is a carcinogen.  Moreover, the gas, soil and groundwater of Lots One, Two, and Three contain a whole variety of volatile organic compounds which are too vast to be mentioned.  There are metals, semi volatile organic compounds, pesticides, polychlorinated biphenys of various types, levels of acidity, sulphates, sulphides, aluminum, cyanide, dioxins, radioisotopes, arsenic, asbestos and chromium.  It is a dangerous place to be working.  And Simms' comment is very important.  It is of concern.  This is something that we would like to discuss and think about.  

The historical activities that have gone on at the Zeneca/Stauffer site are not known to us in full.  We have no information on the total amount of purified uranium metal that was melted in the electron gun ovens that were owned by the Stauffer Chemical Company.  We don't know how much was melted, and we are concerned about that because uranium metal is toxic, and it is very difficult to find in the environment.  It is not the norm.  It is not U 238 norm.  It is completely devoid of its daughter radioisotopes, so you can't see it well in a gamma spectrometer.  

So the number of ovens and the nature of the tonnage of metals that were melted is not known to us.  But Sherry has made very recent progress in reconstructing the uranium melting operation, and I will just presage this by saying that there were ovens on that property that were capable of purifying metal at the rate of 13 tons per hour.  That was the capacity.  Now we want to know the actual tonnage of uranium, or any other metal, which we have yet to find out.  But that is the capacity. 

MR. BLUM:  Do you have the date range? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  This would be in the 1945 to 1959 range.  

MS. ABBOTT:  Could you repeat that?  

DR. ESPOSITO:  1945 to 1959.  Stauffer Chemical was a leader in the development of high temperature melting in ovens for metal that is difficult to melt, refractory metals, and have been doing that kind of research since the 1930s and have had some of the most brilliant people in the field working for them.  One gentleman by the name of C.W. Hanks was the leader in his field.  

Now, the other major piece of business we have been conducting is the review of draft current conditions report from the University of California Berkeley Richmond Field Station.  Our comments of the committee were compiled by Stephen Linsley, edited by Sherry Padgett, blessed by myself.  And the final report was submitted to DTSC on June 8th.  And we have done something which is absolutely novel as far as the Toxics Committee.  At the very same time we sent that report to the responsible party at the University of California Berkeley so they would see immediately our critique without any delay.  I think this is quite important because there are a number of issues that need to be addressed, and I think the University of California Berkeley administration will be interested.  

The committee critique of this draft current conditions report for the UC Berkeley Richmond Field Station was very lengthy.  And the reason for this is that we found this to be a very poor report.  We recommend that the report be rewritten rather than be revised in response to comments.  It's faulty in fundamental areas.  The actual acreage of the property,for example different values are given in different parts of the report by different people.  DTSC gives one value, and in various subsets of the report different acreages are mentioned.  Some areas are totally ignored, like the mud flats down here, part of the  property.    An entire corridor which comprises 10 percent of the real estate along this eastern border with the Zeneca/Stauffer site has virtually been untouched in terms of examination for toxics.  

I actually took the original small map, I cut out this area, and I weighed it.  And I took an intact map and I weighed that, and it is 10 percent We recommend that this report be rewritten.  

The actual acreage, the cleanup status and ownership reports of the property, are completely missing.  For example, who owns Meeker Ditch?  What's the history of Meeker Slough, Meeker Channel?  In formational gaps:incorrect references to the location of the breakwater, the status of the mud flat, a failure to provide an inventory of the items that are buried at the bulb, this area.  A Richmond Field Station employee reported several years ago that he participated in the burying of barrels that contained Plutonium 239 waste.  Now a magnetometer survey has been conducted and they have found a ferrous metal deposit which is consistent with the presence of many barrels or a big truck.  But the point is that they marked the site with a used skateboard they found in the vicinity.  

This is a haphazard approach to something that might be a very serious issue because this would be alpha particle radiation.  It means that if you go to the site and you put a radiation detector on the ground, you are not going to know that 20 feet below the ground there are alpha particles inside a steel barrel.  Those barrels are probably rusted after ten years.  That was the total intent of the Department of Energy in burying barrels near water or putting barrels in water, i.e. that they would deteriorate in ten years and slowly release the contaminants into the environment.  This was called disposal by dilution, and it stopped in 1970.  

So there has been a failure to post a hazard warning at this site.  There has been a failure to evaluate the effectiveness of this slurry wall which is a structure that is meant to prevent entry of toxic onto the Richmond Field Station, presumably moving out from the Zeneca/Stauffer site, toxic plumes coming this way.  We don't know about the effectiveness of that.  We don't know about the effectiveness of the biologically active permeable barrier, which is another name for a mound consisting principally of compost and gravel-like components, which contains  microorganisms that are treating the acidity in the soil.  As they continue with their metabolism, they deal with the acidity, in fact, even the alkalinity in the soil.  We would like to know how that is working in detail.  Eventually the bugs will eat the rest of the compost and what will the biologically active permeable barrier be doing?  

The other defects or, let's say, items which are left out of this report, I will leave you to read because everyone has a copy of this summary.  What I would like to talk about is a separate issue, and this is not a problem of the responsible party per se.  I think it is the impression that a member of the general public gets when one reads an order, a document order from DTSC to the land owner.  The document order says that you are required to measure the content of the environment with respect to toxins that you suspect may be there.  And you can do this at, or near, the maximum contaminant level.  This is not very comforting because, in point of fact, given the value of all of these properties why not do this down to the level that one can do it by the chemical and physical techniques that are now available makes. It is incomprehensible.  Why is one asked to do it at such a superficial level?  

If The claim is that it is not what is being said, then it should be very explicit.  We want this down to the level that is technically possible today.  This is not in the document order.  And when a member of the general public reads this document order they wonder what is going on.  My concern is that what is going on    and I may be incorrect, and I hope that DTSC will come and answer this question.  Why don't you ask the responsible parties to analyze for contaminants and toxins using techniques that are currently available so you can detect down to the level of current technology?  That would be a very satisfying approach for the general public.  Because what is going to follow these analyses are deed restrictions and covenants which are supposed to be protective of human health.  We are either going to put concrete over contaminated areas, you can't drink the water or grow your vegetables, but if you haven't analyzed down to finality, you don't know what is present.  How can you be writing a deed or covenant that is actually protective of human health when you have incomplete knowledge of  what is potentially toxic? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  I want to clarify something.  I am hearing you asking    I am hearing you ask DTSC for something, and I want to make sure we capture that.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Ask DTSC for modern physical technical determination of toxins down to the level of current technology.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I'll paraphrase.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Ask for modern analytic methods.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Can you provide them specifics in terms of what this question is?

DR. ESPOSITO:  Yes.

MS. RIDGWAY:  More analytic detail.  So I am going to    so you will talk or communicate with DTSC on this thing right here? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Right.  And then I have one other point.  The document order says that five years after people have occupied the site or whatever is taking place there is going to be a review to determine whether the remediation activities have been protective of human health, and the responsible party, the land owner, is mandated to do that study.  In the document order there was no protocol given for that study.  Moreover, it has nothing to do with human health.  It has to do, if you ask people what was done, for example, at Marina Bay village, give us a an answer as to whether the toxin level has remained the same, has the cap capped the toxins, is the water still as contaminated as it was before, not more, hopefully.  But there has been no pre-epidemiological survey of actual human health, real human health.  I don't think you can practice medicine with a steam shovel.  

The question you are asking is if you really want to be protective of human health, propose a health study that is that medically sound.  I would like to know    I don't expect DTSC to have this.  What I would like to know from DTSC, the question for DTSC is where is the data, the scientific data that says that all of these activities    actually protect human health.  Where arethe data?  

Because when I look at the legislation I don't see health data.  What I see is an a priori statement that this will work or that will work.  I want to see the data, the scientific data from health investigators that says these techniques work.

DR. BRUNNER:  Are you moving a health investigation? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  What is the action that you want to follow up on? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I would like proof that remediation activities protect human health.  Where is the data? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  And will you also give more detail to DTSC about this? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Sure.  And I will just conclude by saying that this is a question that I think there must be an answer to because there is a long protocol that everyone is following to get to the final certification.  And it is in the public interest to know, in point of fact, that all of these activities are soundly based on the medical literature that has proven that they work.  Thank you.  That is my report.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So we have a few minutes for questions. 

MS. PADGETT:  I have just a general comment to add to Michael's report.  And it has to do with something we heard from Cherokee about the upcoming public comment on the remedial action work plan for Lot One for the PCB, TCE, and TCB hot spot    that is, for everyone who isn't aware of it, there is a hot spot up there near the entrance of the UC Richmond Field Station right off    maybe you could point to it.  It is up there in the pink area right there.  Right here.  That is it.

MS. GRAVES:  Is it near the guard station?  

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  The guard station is right there.

MR. DOTSON:  Access to it is controlled, the area that you are referring to?

MS. PADGETT:  The area that is owned by Cherokee is fenced.  The area that is owned by the UC Richmond Field Station is fenced.  South 46th Street is not fenced.  Parts of the hot spot involves, we believe    we are not sure yet    we haven't seen the data    is under the south 46th Street or nearby.  Where I want to go with this little conversation, and I don't want to take a lot of time, is that the concern that we have and we have talked about this before, is the fast tracking of the reports and the process on the Cherokee site where we have current conditions report, then we have a remedial investigation report, then we have a human and ecological health risk assessment, then a feasibility study, and then a removal action plan.  They are supposed to go in sequence.  

What we have here is DTSC's concern that we have a lot of    we have a hot spot up there where we need to take action sooner than getting through all of those other steps for the whole site.  So DTSC issued, I guess, kind of an order.  They said, "You need to get this hot stuff out of here.  We need to remove the soil that has all of these contaminants out there in the northwest corner of Lot One."  

So they put together a removal action work plan that includes a health risk assessment.  And that health risk assessment has been done or is about to be completed before we have the remedial investigation report finalized for Lot One.  So let's go back to the sequence.  The sequence is a current conditions report got written.  Normally you would expect that current conditions report to be finalized before you see a remedial investigation report.  

DTSC agreed with the responsible party that the current conditions report did not need to be finalized, that all of the questions would be answered in the remedial investigation report.  And so here we have all of the issues we have related to the current conditions report piled into the remedial investigation report.  And we commented on the remedial investigation report.  And we are waiting for all of those answers, and we are adding more to it with our technical consultants.  And yet we are moving forward with a health risk assessment on that same lot that applies to the removal action work plan. 

MR. BLUM:  Has there been any effort to cull out that hot spot and proceed on the area specifically and continue on the normal track with the others, or is the entire Lot One being moved forward at that pace?

MS. PADGETT:  They are carving out that corner, and what we don't know is whether the health risk assessment that has been developed for that northwest corner applies only to that little corner or whether it applies to all of Lot One.  We are not sure.  It is a heads up.  It is    we are concerned that we are moving forward with the health risk assessment on an area without including all of the data we needed, specifically the radionuclide data.  The electron beam furnaces were housed right there in that area, some of them were, and we haven't figured out what is going on with the radionuclides issue.

DR. ESPOSITO:  There is no uranium data for Lots One, Two, and Three. 

DR. CLARK:  In regard to the issue about the electron beam furnaces and all that stuff, I know that the City Council and Planning Commission talked about this particular issue.  My understanding is that DTSC or the regulatory agencies, are they confirming that these activities took place there or that this electronic beam furnace was there or is still there or remains?  Or are we just saying that and the agency denied it? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Let me give you an answer.  In the Remedial Investigation reports that we have read, the statement is clearly made that uranium was melted at the site, that the Buildings90, 91, 94, 95 were surveyed for radioactive material on the surface of laboratory benches.  This is not the environment.  That is very easy to do, lab benches.  Soil is another matter.  Those buildings were then destroyed and taken away.  Some of them were ground up.  The concrete was used as landfill.  We know there were seven ovens that were on site.  What we don't know is the tonnage of uranium that was melted, and we don't know how much uranium material there is in the soil because uranium metal is a different chemical item than NORM.  So no one has denied it happened.  We just don't have any information on the contamination level because that requires special testing.  

DR. CLARK:  You are saying no one denied that it happened.  As I recall, a councilmember stated, I believe that about a letter from DTSC, that the regulatory agency denied it, which is basically what you are saying.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think he must be referring to some other letter.  In point of fact, there have been a number of different consultants working for the owners of the property at different times who historically reported the values for other radioisotopes on the property and they are concerned.  It is in the Remedial Investigation report.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Does this need to be clarified? 

DR. CLARK:  Let me clarify.  I hear what you are saying.  If there is    he's got DTSC people here that can address this.  In terms of DTSC position, these activities, these furnaces, ten or whatever.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Seven.

DR. CLARK:  The activities that have been referred to on the site, DTSC acknowledges that these activities took place and that this material is possibly there?

MS. RIDGWAY:  Let me ask, you have a question for DTSC, correct?  Do you have answers for that tonight, or is this something you need to go back and   

MS. NAKASHIMA:  I am going to give you an update on the radiation issue.  Maybe that will answer the question.

DR. ESPOSITO:  For the information for the public, I am not saying anything that the responsible party has not put in their remediation report.  I am quoting their report.  I am not even quoting DTSC.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Before we move on from this information, I know you have a comment.  I want to make sure if there is anything we need to follow up on.

MS. GRAVES:  Yes.  Follow up.

MS. RIDGWAY:  This is the follow up.  She is going to give an update.  So the question    can you rephrase the question?  I'll capture it so we make sure it is answered during that, and if it is not answered, we will follow up on it afterwards, so if they don't have the information...  This is a question for DTSC.  So in a few minutes Lynn is going to give an update.  And if it is not addressed then, if she doesn't have the answer right here, we'll capture it as something that needs to be followed up.  Go ahead.  And then I am going to    

DR. BRUNNER:  I thought it was an interesting report, and it raises a lot of issues, particularly the issues of the levels of detection and how you follow up on human health.  And I think that the proposal earlier that sometime that we schedule a discussion on the human health risk assessment, how it is done and what it means, because I think that is the    that is the venue in which those questions are really addressed.  And they come out in terms of what the assumptions are.   

MS. RIDGWAY:  So you want the schedule    

DR. BRUNNER:  I am emphasizing that is proposed.  The more I hear about it the more I think it is a good idea.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Carolyn, and then follow up on what you said. 

MS. GRAVES:  I was also at the meeting that Dr. Clark has mentioned.  And actually, Councilmember Marquez was asking me questions.  And it did appear    I don't know where the confusion is, but I sent an email to the City Council members trying to say, you know, to clarify what I knew of the situation.  But I believe I need to follow up again and see if he still has an issue with it.  It sounded to me like there was definitely    I don't know whether he misunderstood someone or had been given bad information, but definitely what he was saying did not agree with what the CAG has discussed.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Can you tell me what that is?

MS. GRAVES:  Follow up with Councilmember Marquez regarding site radionuclide information.  And this is Carolyn.  Then I don't know if Gail has    

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  At that meeting the other night, my sense of what Councilmember Marquez was asking was he was referring to the time that DTSC    and I think Carolyn did address it, the magnetometer, looking into the situation, which is not what we are asking for at this point, which does not go into the full realm of what is needed to make the determination.  And so he thought because DTSC said they did that magnetometer study or whatever, and there was not evidence from that, that there was what people were concerned about, the radionuclides, that the case was closed.  And I think he was making that    that he thought that, and we are saying that the case should not be closed.

MS. GRAVES:  He specifically mentioned that there had been other excavation efforts to look for the barrels, and I have to follow up with that.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I am going to do a process check, because we need to wrap up the Toxics Committee conversation so we can be on schedule, because that's one of our ground rules.

MR. DOTSON:  Before you do that, I would like to hear from Michael.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I just want to make sure if it is something that we should talk about here that we do.  But if it is something that    if we have captured it the other thing we said is we are going to capture it and move on.  I am trying to follow the ground rules.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think what Whitney is referring to is the concern that the Toxics Committee and of the CAG that the buildings in which radioactive material was housed and where uranium melting and other activities occurred, that the concrete from those buildings was ground up and spread over the area, thus Buildings 90, 91, 94, 96 and others.  

And the reason that is also a concern is because in the presence of radioactive materials such as uranium, radioisotopes are formed.  It is called activation in the concrete that houses the materials.  And what we were concerned about is not only is it about uranium metal itself but also the possibility that the concrete that was ground up and spread around might contain things such as radioisotopes of americium, strontium, europium, cobalt and cesium, which are products of irradiation of concrete shielding that occur in nuclear accelerators, et cetera.  So there is a concern, and we have shared this with all parties, and when the radioisotope data comes in, we'll know the answer "yes" or "no".

MR. KIM:  Has DTSC ordered remediation of the hot spot in Richmond Field Station?  It is part of Zeneca, part of 46th Street, part of the Field Station.  I know they did it for Zeneca. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  I am going to put you as the person asking the question.  So if there is any follow up information, then DTSC can get that for you.  You can follow up with that.  So we need to move on because we want to stay on track.  If there are other questions, comments, please write them down.  We can read them or we can pass them on.  If you have questions for DTSC, write them down.  We'll send them on.  Yes.

MR. MOSTELLER:  Is it possible to make a clarifying comment?  I know we do need to move on.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Two seconds.

MR. MOSTELLER:  Recognizing this is an important issue, one that needs to be addressed.  My name is Doug Mosteller for Cherokee Investment Partners.  The only comment that I do want to make is that from what I understand from the Building 94 that you are referring to, an appropriate radiological survey was done within that building that was signed off by DHS prior to its demolition.  And that has been documented.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  And the method used would not have detected uranium metal.  That is the problem.

MS. RIDGWAY:  You have captured what you need to follow up on?  Are we doing a five minute break?  Five minute break.  

(Recess)

MS. RIDGWAY:  Lynn is going to give us a DTSC update.

MS. NAKASHIMA:  If you don't know me, I am Lynn Nakashima with the Department of Toxic Substances Control.  So I am with the Department of Toxic Substances Control.  Is that better?  Since Doug Mosteller went over a lot of the updates of the Zeneca site, I will just briefly go through the updates that were handed out.  I guess the first one that he didn't touch on yet was the implementation report for the habitat enhancement area, which is the marsh.  They submitted the report that describes the work they previously did.  We have reviewed it and we have approved it.  So for the southeast parcel, which is down in this area, they submitted a sampling plan.  And we reviewed it and we will be sending out comments on that probably in the next weeks.

MS. RIDGWAY:  We need to capture that.  Is that in the report? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  No.  So what I will do is I will post our comments on our website.  And the CAG has been getting these automatic…    you haven't been getting the notifications? 

MS. PADGETT:  We don't get notifications.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Could you put that on the list for DTSC? 

MS. PADGETT:  Check notification to CAG for EnviroStor.  
MS. PADGETT:  Nobody is getting them.  

MS. GRAVES:  I have seen some.  I don't know if I’ve received all of them.  Maybe you can pick a few of us with phone numbers you have and when you post it and you think it is a reasonable time for us to get it, you can check with us.  

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Okay.  

MR. DURAN:  You can do a request receipt email. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  It goes to an automatic vendor.  They are supposed to automatically send it.  I have no control.

MS. PADGETT:  When do you need our comments (on the southeast parcel sampling plan) in order for our comments to be considered in your response?  When will you be sending your comments on the sampling plan?  
MS. RIDGWAY:  Is there a time? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  In the next week. After you finalize your comments.  At the same time that we put it on our website.  
Earlier this week DTSC met with the Department of Health Services, and Cherokee was also present to discuss the whole radiological issue, and this gets to Henry's question.  Yes, we have known all along there was an electronic beam furnace.  And there may have been other sources of radioactivity out there.  So the first step in this process is that Cherokee will be putting together what is called a historical site assessment.  This assessment is going to include document searches, interviews with former employees.  What they will do is put this all together in one report, and it will include any kind of data that we have for the Department and for    for the Department of Health Services to review.  And then based on that report we will make decisions on whether there is data gaps and additional sampling needs to be conducted.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So is that historical perspective report already on the plan?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  No.  It is something new.  It is going to be    

DR. CLARK:  You said that    I may be confused here.  Maybe I did not hear it clearly.  You said that you knew all along about the ovens and the radiological activity on the site.  You said you knew it all along.  Yet it seems to me like I recall that Ethel Dotson has been raising these issues a long, long time ago from day one, and everybody played dumb from the agencies and didn't know nothing about it.  So now you are saying that you knew about it all the time?  So am I understanding this correctly, is that issues, that radiological issues that Ethel Dotson had been raising, that this is the same thing that you are talking about, now that you are aware of it, yet when she was raising it, these issues from day one, nobody didn't know nothing about it.

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Are you talking about when the Water Board was working on the site?

DR. CLARK:  The Water Board, you, whoever.  

DR. BRUNNER:  To be honest, Ethel has been raising issues on it for years. 

DR. CLARK:  DTSC didn't know anything about it and making Ethel seem like she doesn't know what she is talking about.  What are you saying? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Hold on.  Let's try to figure out what the question is that you are looking for response from Lynn, because Lynn is a representative from DTSC.  So I don't know the history in terms of who's been working on this from the beginning.

MS. PADGETT:  I think I can answer a piece of it.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I want to make sure we are moving forward in terms of what is the question and what is the action.

MS. PADGETT:  When the site was under the jurisdiction of the Water Board, Levine Fricke identified one electronic beam melting unit on the site, and there were some evaluations done of the building where that one electron beam unit was supposed to have been housed.  And there was supposed to have been this one event with uranium that occurred in a two week period, and that was supposed to be the only thing that ever happened with uranium on the site.  

Subsequent to the site being turned over to DTSC's jurisdiction, more investigation has been done.  I have been doing digging.  Other people have been doing digging.  Some things have surfaced.  We now know there were at least seven electron beam furnaces, including the largest in the world at the time with a New York Times picture of it, a photo of it.  And there was more uranium melting at the time, including an attempt to purify uranium.  So there are more questions that need to be answered.  And part of that is coming out as we go through the Current Conditions, Remedial Investigation reports.  

And we are    we keep pushing back, saying we don't have enough history and we don't know enough about what is going on.  I am not sure that answers your question.  

DR. CLARK:  It actually doesn't.  This is good information, but, no, it does not answer the question as to why Ethel Dotson has been raising this question all the time and no one at DTSC and nobody else, agencies, seemed to do anything about it.  And now you are going to say that you knew about it all the time? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  What I meant was we had the reports that said there was an electronic beam furnace at the site.  But we have since followed up on it, and I think we have commented on it and requested that the different reports describe it more.  And then as a result they have discovered more.  But it looks like maybe there needs to be more investigation done on that.  

DR. CLARK:  I understand that.  That isn't the question.  I asked a plain and simple question.  Why did you or no one else at the agency address the issue when Ethel Dotson had been asking the question from day one?  What are you telling me, that you didn't know about it at that time or initially you just found out about it later when Ethel was asking the question?  

MR. DURAN:  I think we need to get to the ground rules.  

DR. CLARK:  Now when Ethel was asking this question, all along, nobody didn't seem to know anything about it, as if Ethel was talking nonsense or something.  So what are you telling me is that you didn't know about it then, and you just found out about it when she was asking the questions, and you just found out about it later?

MS. RIDGWAY:  So I am going to   I note you are asking the question.  And you are asking a question about what happened, I am guessing when the CAG first started.  I don't know, Lynn, if you can answer that question about    

DR. CLARK:  Hold on a minute.  You don't need to speak for her.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I am asking her if she can answer the question.  

MR. DURAN:  The question was asked and answered.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I want to know if you had the information to answer that question.  We do need    I think that Sherry gave us some information on the historical perspective. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  We did hear Ethel, and then as a result, as this process went along we did request that they address her issues about the electron beam furnace.  And consequently, as Sherry said, we were finding more information which is now resulting in this new historical site assessment that is specifically addressing all of the radioactive issues out there.  

DR. CLARK:  It comes down to, well, you said you heard her, but you really didn't hear her because you didn't tell her you heard her.  And you are just coming out with this now, so apparently you did not hear her.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  Dan, did you have a comment?

MR. SCHWAB:  On the historical survey of what has happened on the property that Cherokee is doing, how far back does it go and when will it be available? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  It goes back as far as they can find information on the use of the radioactive materials.  And it    I don't know.  I think we are looking at maybe two months, a month or two months.  

MR. MOSTELLER:  It is something that we are going to have to work with Zeneca, because there is    historically they were the ones that had the company ownership or part of the operations.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Can I put you as an owner for this in terms of giving us a date?  

MR. MOSTELLER:  Sure.  I will work with Zeneca to determine exactly when we anticipate additional information.

MR. SCHWAB:  And the scope would be is this going to go back to when it was basically virgin land and what happened since, or only back to certain ownership periods?  That would be my question. 

MR. BLUM:  I have seen some very interesting information that Sherry sent me, and I wonder when they got that information.

MS. PADGETT:  We'll make sure that happens. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Which documents are those? 

MS. PADGETT:  Historical.

MR. BLUM:  History about the furnaces and such.

MS. RIDGWAY:  A specific person at DTSC?  

MR. DURAN:  DTSC has been getting it.  They are on the list.

MR. BLUM:  I assume you have been sending that to DTSC.

MS. PADGETT:  My question up there, and I will follow through with DTSC and ask the question.  On this investigation, where is Bayer Crop Science?  We have three responsible parties, Cherokee/Simeon, Zeneca, and Bayer Crop Science.  So where are they in this activity and looking at history? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  We'll put this down as a question to follow up on.

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  Michael?

DR. ESPOSITO:  The question that I have for DTSC is what analytic method will you be using to detect purified uranium metal in soil and in water as distinct from    just write "different from norm." 

MS. RIDGWAY:  And the other alternative for some of these that I am not familiar with all of these terms, I will capture it here and if you want to write it down there.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I have it in here.

MS. RIDGWAY:  But if you write it down I am going to be providing these to Lynn after the meeting.  So that is another way to do that.

MR. BLUM:  Are you done with your report? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  No.

MS. ABBOTT:  Was that a "yes" or a "no"?  

MR. BLUM:  Keep going.

MS. NAKASHIMA:  The next thing is that sampling is    there is going to be a little bit of sampling done in the marsh.  They are going to be collecting sediment samples to look at the water that is actually in the sediments.  That is going to be part of the risk assessment.  There is a little gap in the information that is in our ecological risk assessment.  They are planning on doing that next week.  It may take up to two days.  

And I guess the next thing would be in Marina Bay.  There is going to be some sampling done at Harbor Way South, the former Richmond plating site at 738 Harbor Way South.  So the work will begin on June 21st.  The site, it was previously capped because it had been worked on.  But they want to do some additional sampling to determine whether they need to remove some additional soil.  And I am hoping that most of you did get your notices, the work notices on that.  

MS. GRAVES:  Harbor Way we got. 

MR. DURAN:  Harbor Way South. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  And I think that is it.

MS. PADGETT:  Can you tell us whether there is a need for another well at Area T in Marina Bay? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  I will have to get back to you.  That is another person.

MS. PADGETT:  Any word on how the BioRad pilot study is going?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Not yet.  They are still sampling.  They really don't have enough information yet.  If you like I could ask them to come to the next meeting.

MS. PADGETT:  I don't want to speak for the whole CAG, but I think having the responsible party come and tell us how it is going, that would be good.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I want to make sure I capture stuff.  So Sherry, you had two questions.  Could you write them down? 

MS. PADGETT:  I will write them down, and you don't have to write them down.

MS. RIDGWAY:  The other thing was that there was    the proposal to bring, who, BioRad?  So we are going to    a BioRad report at the next CAG.  Okay.  And so I will work on that with DTSC. 

MR. BLUM:  In talking about the remediation and the report that you guys just approved on the marsh area, I have heard talk about re- contamination of some of the areas that have already been remediated.  Is there any    what information is available about that?  What is the status of that?  Is that true or is that a rumor?  Do you know what I am talking about? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  No.  

MR. BLUM:  Water flowing back and contaminating some of the areas to the Stege Marsh. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  The Zeneca    oh, Richmond Field Station?  Yeah.  UC just recently collected some data, sediment data and surface water data.  We haven't seen that yet, so I think that will be a good indicator.  So we will have to look at that and get back to you.

MS. ABBOTT:  There are some other questions.

MS. RIDGWAY:  You are going to get back to them on    Lynn will provide updates.  Okay.  Tarnel? 

MS. PADGETT:  I want to drill down just for a minute in Eric's question.  That area right there where the black leg is there on that    yeah, right there.  On the eastern side of that black leg, yes.  On the eastern side of it there is    in the most recent sampling that was done on the UC Richmond Field Station, that would be western Stege Marsh.  That is where the arsenic and mercury and now some PCBs have surfaced in the area and that is the area that had been previously remediated.  I think that is what Eric is referring to, the marsh area that had been cleaned out and is now re-emerging with levels of contaminants that we had not seen previously.

MR. DURAN:  When I heard about that, my first thought was wondering whether that is coming up through the groundwater or whether it is a tidal washing effect from non remediated areas flooding over that zone.  I would be curious to know what is up.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  Tarnel? 

MS. ABBOTT:  Are you going to tell us what is the status of whatever is going on out there at the bulb, where it was marked with a skateboard? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  It is included in the Current Condition report as a data gap or something that needs to be investigated further.

MS. ABBOTT:  Can you give us any information tonight on the status on what is going on with it?  Where is it at?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  We haven't started on it yet.

MS. ABBOTT:  So you identified there is some metal out there? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Right.  We don't know what it is or how deep it is.

MS. ABBOTT:  Do you have an idea of when work is going to begin to investigate what is there and what methodology you will use? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  No.  Not yet.

MS. ABBOTT:  Will you consider the current methodologies that Dr. Esposito has recommend that you use instead of just going in and digging?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  That's one of the reasons we are not going to dig.  We need to think about it and come up with a plan.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So you are going to create a plan and you will provide an update of the plan?  Okay.  So it's twenty till.  Two more and we'll do these three.  And then if you have other questions for Lynn, please write them down and I will include them in the list to Lynn and the CAG.  Okay.  So I don't remember if it was you or you next.  

MR. THOMPSON:  I would like clarification on the remediation they are going to do the 20th or somewhere around that in this area here, right off of Regatta where they are supposed to put in some sampling wells.  What have you done?  You sent out a letter last week. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  That came out of our office.  That was this last one, the Harbor Way South.  

MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, must be.  According to your information that you had in that letter there that it had already been capped.  It had been capped twice.  You capped it one time and then some kind of sealing company was in there and they capped it again.  Are you all going in there for an investigation to see whether or not that cap is recontaminated or more than what it was when you originally capped it? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  It's actually being worked on by another person, but my understanding is they are going back to re-sample the soils that are below the cap.  They are not sampling the cap.  

MR. THOMPSON:  It mentioned something in there about sealing, if it is possible to leave whatever is there. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Right, or whether    yeah, whether it should be removed.  You know, maybe the best thing for me to do is have the project manager call you and answer your question specifically.  I am not too familiar with everything that is going on out there.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Is that okay?  

MR. THOMPSON:  All right.

MS. RIDGWAY:  You can give her your information or you can give him the project manager information, however that works.  What is the best way to do that? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  If I have his information.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  

MS. GRAVES:  Simms is a private individual.  He should be able to call this person at the office.  If she just calls him at any time of day, he might not be there  that is not fair. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  I am okay either way.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So you will get the information.  So who was next?  You are next.  

DR. BRUNNER:  This issue with the metal that is under the mud, didn't we have a situation like a year or two ago, closer to the Marina Bay, where there was a magtometer reading about possible buried drums?  I recall there was an elaborate mechanism where they were dug up in case they were leaking radioactive material. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Right.  It was    

DR. BRUNNER:  This is another similar situation like that? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Right.  The person who identified this area later on said he had been mistaken, and it was right here.  

DR. BRUNNER:  There was an anomaly at the first one.  Barbara called me up and she said, "We have to tell you we found metal under it."

DR. ESPOSITO:  There is a third positive area, magnetometer positive area. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Down in this area. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Last one, and then write down any questions you have for Lynn.  And we will give them to her.  

MR. KIM:  It is about that hot spot. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  The one here.  

MR. KIM:  Has PG&E ever been notified of that hot spot? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  I don't know.  We haven't notified them.  

MR. KIM:  Because the hot spot is where PG&E gets called to check out   every once a semester the guard has called PG&E because of a foul odor smell.  And PG&E comes out and does digging at that hot spot.

DR. ESPOSITO:  This is not a question.  It is just something, an observation I would like to transmit.  And that is that Los Alamos National Laboratory has an entire wing, research facility, devoted to the recovery of radioactive waste barrels.  They have the protocol to do it safely and to determine their content.  There are 300,000 barrels distributed around the country.  So it has been a subject of some science.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Is that information that   

MS. NAKASHIMA:  I think DTSC would like to know that there are people out there.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  I provided the information. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Can you provide a contact person? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Do you have any other detailed information?

DR. ESPOSITO:  Call the main office of Los Alamos and say we have some barrels.  Los Alamos Laboratory.

MR. MUNOZ:  We have 15 minutes.  I am sorry to jump in, but we need to move on.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Give her content, not just questions.  I apologize for that.  So, okay, thank you, Lynn.  All right.  Quickly, I apologize, we are now on the public comments.  Thank you, Lynn.  Public comments?  

DR. RABOVSKY:  My name is Jean Rabovsky.  For those who don't know, I am a former member of the Community Advisory Group and the Toxics Committee.  First, we really do need microphones.  Some people have soft voices.  Others may have trouble hearing.  Some people may not be able to project their voices well.  I really would advise getting some microphones.  I was really very interested in the Toxics Committee report in which they said all of the former    all the letters that were written and critiques that were written by the Toxics Committee with recommendations were passed on to the responsible party so that they would really know firsthand what the concerns of the Community Advisory Group are.  I would like to expand that and suggest that to see if there is a way that on the DTSC site those letters and correspondences can also be included.  

Those letters are written to DTSC.  I think in one or two cases, I could not remember exactly, we actually received responses to a communication.  Since they were written to DTSC and responded by DTSC, that is already in the public domain.  I have looked through the EnviroStor website, the EnviroStor section, their community involvement section.  I have looked through the site of anything that has to do with Zeneca.  There are copies of correspondences and documentations with the responsible parties back and forth, the discussions that have taken place with DTSC.  There is information about the CAG being formed, who was on the original CAG, but there is nothing about any of the products that the CAG has produced and sent on to DTSC.  

I think that should be in the public domain.  And I think that a lot of people do actually browse.  They are interested in a particular site, and they are going to go and look to see what kind of information is available.  And that information should be there with all of the other correspondences.  Thank you.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So I want to make sure I captured it.  The DTSC letters and correspondence and other products the CAG produced, that needs to be on the EnviroStor.  

DR. RABOVSKY:  Any part.  If it is more than one place it should be available for anybody in the public to access it.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Any others?

MR. WEINER:  My name is Peter Weiner.  Just two things.  One, it's my understanding that some the other community advisory groups, particularly one involving Georgia Pacific up in the Fort Bragg area, they have something on their EnviroStor site that does a list serve on every CAG member when there is something new at the EnviroStor. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  That's what we were talking about earlier.  The problem is it is not being sent.  

MR. WEINER:  They are working on it.  But also I asked the Director Borson, because this came up before, whether we could have letters the CAG sent to DTSC on the website.  And she said of course, that there is no policy against that or that they don't put it on until they answer it.  So I would just like to say that if it is useful, I would be happy to be of service if we need to write a letter to the director about that.  But I think that is something that Jean is talking about that could be done.  The only other thing I wanted to say is that the best kind of work that I think happens here is when it is transparent.  So that when all of the CAG knows what DTSC is doing, what CSV is doing, what other responsible parties are doing, and with regard to the issue of radioactivity, it seems to me that it might be useful to have a work plan that can be vetted with you that talks about how they are going to go about really documenting the history of the site with regard to radioactivity.  Hopefully that is not just the Zeneca part of the site.  It is the CSV as well or whoever else is in the jurisdiction of the CAG.  

But this has been just such a persistent issue.  And Dr. Clark is certainly right.  It is being ignored.  And it is now fairly obvious that it keeps coming back in little bits and little pieces, and that we need to have that kind of documented history.  So I would hope that perhaps DHS and DTSC could work on this with the CAG's technical consultants in an open way to arrive at a full history of what went on here because no one knows what actually happened at the site.  It is very difficult to know where to find the needles in the haystack.  It seems to me the time has come.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Thank you.  Any other? 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I came to the Toxics Subcommittee meeting a few weeks ago.  I don't know if I can speak loud enough, and I heard about the skateboard out there.  And summer is coming, and most boys follow creeks in hot weather down to the marsh.  If I was a boy I would find that skateboard and renovate it.  The well in the park where people are finding these bad things, where is it?  There is no signage.  Why can't the Public Works Department of Richmond put up some warning signs in English and Spanish?  Because I know there are more and more little boys going down in these areas.  I don't know the land, but I wonder why this has not happened.  It's come up so many times amongst you, and no one moves on it.  Can anyone answer?

MS. PADGETT:  With Eric's help, we did get a fence up around the western Stege Marsh and City of Richmond.  

MR. DURAN:  With signs.  

MS. PADGETT:  And UC put up some pretty good signs up there that are red and white.  And they are on the fence out there.  A couple of them have been defaced recently.  They have some white paint on them.  However, there are signs out there on the fence that are warning signs.  And we have had a fence constructed.  That does not keep the public out completely, but it is a much greater deterrent than it has been in the past.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  And the well in the park?

MS. PADGETT:  I don't know what that is.  

MR. DURAN:  Which park? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I was talking about a well on the Zeneca site.  What I was referring to is that the park where DTSC collected some control soil samples to monitor their Radium 226 content, turned out all of the eight samples have Radium 226 at levels 40 times higher than the public health remediation goals.  Their response is that is the nature of the local land.  The site on Zeneca is near a monitoring well.  I think it is MW25    it's near a monitoring well.  The level is 200 times higher than preliminary remediation goals for residences.  And that is what I was talking about.

MR. DURAN:  To her question, there is not a well in a park that the public has access to.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Do the workers going there to work on the monitoring?  Do they know if they are day laborers, and they only speak Spanish?  They are not going to have a clue.  

MS. NAKASHIMA:  They are not day laborers.  They are people who are trained in sampling wells and also have internal training in dealing with hazardous substances.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Are they are wearing personal dosimeters?  
MR. BLUM:  It's not Spanish speaking day laborers digging the well.

MS. ABBOTT:  The CAG has fought very long and hard to have some signage out there.  I personally don't think what is there is adequate.  We got a first    kind of finally after months and months and months and letters, years, a little response.  It is not adequate.  And I don't know that they were day laborers, but there certainly was a work crew up to their shoulders in tree removal on Mead Street who had no clue of any possible contamination.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Is there an action that needs to come out of this but somebody needs to follow up on?

MS. ABBOTT:  Well, you know, we could write another letter.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I am asking because it has come up.  I want to make sure we follow up on it.

MR. MUNOZ:  There might need to be a discussion of this issue again, given that the signs have been defaced.  And then also the request that they be also placed in Spanish.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Who can own something like that?  Is that something on the CAG? 

MS. ABBOTT:  That should be Steve Duran, I believe.  

MR. DURAN:  I will follow up on the signs.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So it is. 

MS. ABBOTT:  That gate has sometimes been open over there also. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  It is now 9:00 by my watch.  We have not had a nominations update.  We haven't done the bylaws.  I don't think we should do the bylaw discussion now because we don't have    because it will become a discussion.  Who does nominations? 

MR. MUNOZ:  I will focus on my report, but I would ask please keep the meeting moving because it is not fair to hold us so late.  And I guess all of us as CAG members need to cooperate in doing so.  The Nominations Committee.  I sent an email on behalf of the Nominations Committee to those CAG members that have five or more absences between the period of June '06 and April.  And out of those four I received a response, and the email was really just reminding the members about our bylaws that state that people should be encouraged not to have more than four absences in one year.  Out of the email I received one response, that Arnie Kasendorf was resigning from the CAG.  And he specified his reasons for resigning.  So that leaves one more opening on our CAG.  

So I am going to hand out an updated roster, and currently we have five openings.  The grouping is the same as when the CAG was originally created, and currently we have one vacancy under citizen civic groups.  One in the Coronado neighborhood, one for El Cerrito, one for Marina Bay, and one for the Pullman neighborhood.  The Nominations Committee is planning on conducting improvement efforts and hopefully having interviews sometime in September, and we are holding them until September because of the summer vacation and people being away.  And so we felt that it was more appropriate to wait until then.  And obviously we'll need help from committee members for the whole CAG in helping us refer people to their communities.  So if you are speaking in any of your neighborhood councils or talking to your neighbors, please do let them know that we have openings so that we can fill those vacancies that we currently have.  

The other handout that is coming around is a listing of our committees.  And I won't spell all of them out since you have the handout.  But we currently have ten committees.  Obviously a lot of work gets done at the committee level.  That's how we would like to keep it.  Out of those ten committees we have 22.  Up to date we need two total CAG members.  Out of those 22 only 14 are participating on CAG committee work.  I would like to invite all of you, if you are able to, to participate in committee work.  That is where, again, we are trying to get a lot of the work done so we don't end up having long drawn out discussions here so that leads to us being late again so we can be more productive.  

Also I guess when I was writing our notes I wrote that we have two winners.  That is Sherry and Joe for the people that serve on the most committees.  So both of them serve on six committees each.  And I think that is wonderful, but I think that we do need to get more people involved so the load gets shared more evenly.  And that is my report.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Thank you for cheering everybody who is participating on the committees.  That was one thing we talked about in the last committee.  We want work to happen on the committees.  And it does take people to have that happen.  I don't know if you heard me say you got bumped, Eric.  I apologize for the bylaw discussion, because my impression is it will become a discussion and it is 9:00 o'clock.  I am sorry.  You will be on the agenda next time.  Okay?  I promise.  So I think that is it for tonight.  

(The meeting was adjourned.)
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